
1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2025 
6:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 2, 2025: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 
PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Boards and Commissions Appointment.  Approve the following Mayoral Boards and Commissions 
appointment: 

 
Name Board/Commission Term Expires 

Adeline Mahoney 
Parks & Recreation Commission 
Student Representative 

06-30-2026 

 
2. Traffic Control Order No. 1546.  Approve Traffic Control Order No. 1546 closing N. Cedar Street from 

Main Street to the alley (aka Eleanor Drive) until such time as the structural condition of the building 
at 800 W. Main Street is remedied. 



2 
 

3. Traffic Control Order Request – Walk to End Alzheimer’s.  Approve request from Friends of Pat’s 
Place for the closure of Ada Street from Jennett Street to the dead end form 8:30 a.m. – 10:30 p.m. 
on Saturday, September 27, 2025 for the Walk to End Alzheimer’s event and further approve Traffic 
Control Order No. 1541 formalizing permission, contingent upon satisfactory receipt of insurance. 

 
4. Traffic Control Order Request - Owosso High School 2025 Homecoming Parade.  Approve request 

from Owosso High School for closure of the streets listed on the application from 5:00 p.m.-7:00 p.m. 
on Friday, October 3, 2025 for the annual High School Homecoming parade and approve Traffic 
Control Order No. 1547 formalizing the request. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 4.2, 4.6, 5.12, 7.1 
 

5. Traffic Control Order Request - Owosso High School Marching Band Festival.  Approve request from 
Jillian Kowalczyk, Owosso High School Band Director, for the closure of various streets surrounding 
Willman Field for the Owosso High School Marching Band Festival from 2:30 p.m.-10:00 p.m. on 
Monday, October 13, 2025 (rain date Monday, October 20, 2025) and approve Traffic Control Order 
No. 1548 formalizing the permission. 
 

6. Emergency Repair Authorization – Public Safety Vehicle.  Authorize payment to All Star Towing & 
Repair LLC for emergency repair and replacement of the brakes on Public Safety Vehicle #2 in the 
amount of $2,054.50. 

 
7. Change Order – 2025 Well Improvements Project.  Approve Change Order No. 1 to the 2025 Well 

Improvements Project increasing the contract in the amount of $480,653 for the replacement of 17 
non-working valves and actuators, and further approve payment up to the amount of $1,827,653.00 to 
the contractor upon satisfactory completion of the project or portion thereof. 

 Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.4, 3.7, 3.8, 6.6 
 
8. Warrant No. 659.  Authorize Warrant No. 659 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 
Shiawassee Economic 
Development Partnership 

Annual Investment Pledge (2025-2026) General $40,000 

 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

1. 5th Monday Meeting.  Consider setting a 5th Monday meeting for Monday, September 29, 2025 at 6:30 
p.m. for the purpose of discussing recycling and the new state laws regarding recycling. 
 

2. SATA Commitment.  Approve the annual commitment to the Shiawassee Area Transportation Agency 
(SATA) for their upcoming fiscal year starting October 1, 2025 in an amount not to exceed 
$117,682.97 for the provision of public transportation. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:   7.1 
 

3. Water Portal Proposal.  Consider a contract with Silverblaze Solutions Inc. for the hosting, 
maintenance, and support of their Customer Engagement Portal in the amount of $25,000.00 for a 
one-year period, authorize the City Manager to execute said contract, and approve payment up to the 
amount of the contract upon successful implementation of the service. 

 Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.3, 3.4 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 



3 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  September 2025 Building Department Report. 
2. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  September 2025 Code Violations Report. 
3. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  September 2025 Inspections Report. 
4. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  September 2025 Certificates Issued Report. 
5. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  September 2025 Police Report. 
6. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  September 2025 Fire Report. 
7. Parks & Recreation Commission.  Minutes of August 27, 2025. 
8. DDA/Main Street Board.  Minutes of September 3, 2025. 
 

NEXT MEETING 

Monday, September 29, 2025 
Monday, October 6, 2025 – Regular Meeting 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 

Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2026 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2027 
DDA/OMS Board – term expires June 30, 2028 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2027 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2028 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing 
impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at 
the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with disabilities requiring 
auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing the following:  Owosso City 
Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. 
The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  
 



PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT THE FOLLOWING MEETING  
CAN ONLY BE VIEWED VIRTUALLY 

 
The Owosso City Council will conduct an in-person meeting on September 15, 2025.  Citizens may view and 
listen to the meeting using the following link and phone numbers.   

 
OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2025 AT 6:30 P.M. 
 
The public joining the meeting via Zoom CANNOT participate in public comment. 

 
• Join Zoom Meeting:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85040924792?pwd=ztT2ob3M41bzmv07K7EQrtt5XuDWn0.1  
 

Meeting ID:  850 4092 4792 
Passcode:  861455 
 
One tap mobile 

 
 +13126266799,,81130530177#,,,,*017514# US (Chicago) 

+16465588656,,81130530177#,,,,*017514# US (New York) 
 
Dial by your location 

 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
• For video instructions visit: 

 
o Signing up and Downloading Zoom https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8 
o Joining a Zoom Meeting https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ 
o Joining and Configuring Audio and Video https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY 

 
• Helpful notes for participants:    Helpful Hints 

• Meeting packets are published on the City of Owosso website  http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us 

Any person who wishes to contact members of the City Council to provide input or ask questions on any 
business coming before the Council on September 15, 2025 may do so by calling or e-mailing the City 
Clerk’s Office prior to the meeting at (989)725-0500 or city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. Contact information for 
individual Council members can be found on the City website at: 
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council  

The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with 
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with 
disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing 
the following:  Owosso City Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; 
Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85040924792?pwd=ztT2ob3M41bzmv07K7EQrtt5XuDWn0.1
https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8
https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ
https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Portals/0/Files/Documents/CouncilVirtualMeetingNotice-HelpfulHints.pdf
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council
file://coo-dc1/users$/AKKirkland/Documents/PublicNotices/city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/


Draft 1 09-02-2025 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 2, 2025        
6:30 P.M. 

VIRGINIA TEICH CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR ROBERT J. TEICH, JR. 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  PASTOR KENNETH HERBRUCK 
    OWOSSO ASSEMBLY OF GOD 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: MAYOR ROBERT J. TEICH, JR. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem Jerome C. Haber, 

Councilmembers Carl C. Ludington, Emily S. Olson, and Christopher D. 
Owens. 

 
ABSENT: Councilmembers Janae L. Fear and Rachel M. Osmer. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Olson to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Ludington and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 18, 2025 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ludington to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 18, 2025 
as presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Olson and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

*CDBG Housing Grant Application 
 

Master Plan Implementation Goals:    1.1, 1.9, 1.13, 6.6 
 
A public hearing was conducted to receive citizen comment regarding the proposed application to the 
Michigan State Housing Development Authority CDBG Program for a grant to assist in the improvement 
of owner-occupied, single-family homes of low- to moderate- income residents and consider authorizing 
said application and approval of the related authorizing resolution, procurement procedure, and 
determination of level of environmental review.   
 
There were no citizen comments regarding the grant application received prior to, or during the hearing. 
 
Whereas, the Council, after due and legal notice, has met and there being no one to be heard, motion by 
Councilmember Olson that the following resolution be adopted:  



Draft 2 09-02-2025 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 119-2025 

 
APPROVING A COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 
THE MICHIGAN STATE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (MSHDA)  

NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSING INITIATIVES DIVISION (NHID) 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso applied for and has been awarded a CDBG Grant totaling $472,000 to 
assist low- to moderate-income residents, owning and occupying permanent single-family homes in funding 
interior and exterior home improvements to meet code requirements such as roof replacement, windows, 
plumbing, electrical, mechanical and insulation.  This excludes cosmetic only renovations and upgrades; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso will not be required to match any grant dollars, but will serve as the 
administrator of the grant, as pass-through entity for grant funds and will abide by the terms and conditions 
set forth in the grant agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the City of Owosso’s Master Plan Goals; and 
 
WHEREAS, the beneficiaries of this grant will include low- or moderate- income households of the City of 
Owosso that meet the CDBG requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, each household can receive up to $40,000 for improvements and 100% of the homes will be 
occupied by low- or moderate- income residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, qualification for the program is determined by an application process; and 
 
WHEREAS, no project costs (CDBG and non CDBG) will be incurred prior to a formal grant award, 
completion of the environmental review procedures and formal, written authorization to incur costs has 
been provided by the City’s Designated CDBG Specialist; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council voted and approved this Resolution on September 2, 2025 to submit the 
Michigan CDBG Application. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to  
 approve the submission of a CDBG grant application to the Michigan State Housing 

Development Authority Neighborhood Housing Initiatives Division. 
 
SECOND: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 

approve the Procurement Policy and Procedure as presented.   
 
THIRD: City Manager Nathan R. Henne and Planning & Building Director Tanya S. Buckelew are 

designated as Authorized Signers for said grant with the authority to sign the associated 
grant application and all attachments, the grant agreement and all amendments, and 
Payment Requests. 

 
FOURTH: Planning & Building Director Tanya S. Buckelew is designated as the CDBG appointed 

Grant Administrator for said grant and is authorized to administer associated projects to 
completion in accordance with the Program Guidelines. 

 
FIFTH: Planning & Building Director Tanya S. Buckelew is designated as the Certifying Officer for 

the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Environmental Review. 



Draft 3 09-02-2025 

 
Motion supported by Councilmember Ludington. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Ludington, Owens, Olson, Mayor Pro-Tem Haber, and Mayor Teich. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmembers Fear and Osmer. 
 
 

*Boundary Adjustment – Owosso Charter Township 
 
The proposed adjustment would move the boundary with Owosso Charter Township along Palmer 
Avenue from the west side of the street to the center of the street to allow the City to receive Act 51 
monies for said street. 
 
A public hearing was conducted to receive citizen comment regarding the proposal to adjust the boundary 
with Owosso Charter Township along Palmer Avenue.  
 
There were no citizen comments received prior to, or during the hearing. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Owens to approve the boundary adjustment with Owosso Charter Township as 
follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 120-2025 
 

OF THE CITY OF OWOSSO TO ADJUST THE BOUNDARY LINE 
WITH OWOSSO CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso is a Home Rule City in Shiawassee County, Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Owosso Charter Township is a charter township in Shiawassee County, Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Shiawassee County Road Commission, through a resolution in 1988, afforded the City of 
Owosso jurisdiction over Palmer Avenue, which forms a boundary line between the City of Owosso and 
Owosso Charter Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current legal boundary line between the City of Owosso and Owosso Charter Township is 
located along the western shoulder of Palmer Avenue, which conflicts with the jurisdiction previously 
granted to the City of Owosso; and 
 
WHEREAS, this conflict in jurisdiction has resulted in the City of Owosso not receiving accurate road 
funding under Michigan Public Act 51 of 1951 for the maintenance and repair of Palmer Avenue; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso and Owosso Charter Township have agreed to adjust the boundary line to 
resolve this conflict and ensure proper administration and funding for Palmer Avenue; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed boundary adjustment moves the boundary line from the western shoulder of 
Palmer Avenue to the centerline of Palmer Avenue for the section of the street located south of the north 
section line of Section 25 in Owosso Township (approximately .42 miles), and further described as: 
 

A parcel of land in Section 25, Town 7 North, Range 2 East, City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan, described as commencing at the North 1/4 corner of said Section 25, thence 
S89°20’00”E 594.02 feet (surveyed as S86°03’21”E 593.42 feet) along the North line of said 



Draft 4 09-02-2025 

Section to the West right-of-way line of Palmer Avenue and the Point of Beginning, thence 
continuing along the North line of Section 25 S89°20’00”E 33 ft feet to the centerline of Palmer 
Avenue, thence South on the centerline of Palmer Avenue and parallel with the North and 
South 1/4 line of Section 25 to a point on the East and West 1/4 line of Section 25, thence West 
along the East and West 1/4 line to the West right-of-way line of Palmer Avenue said point 
described as being 594 feet East of the Center of Section 25, thence North on the West right-
of-way line of Palmer Avenue and parallel with the North and South 1/4 line of Section 25 to 
the Point of Beginning. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, that the boundary line 
between the City of Owosso and Owosso Charter Township shall be, and hereby is, adjusted to the 
centerline of Palmer Avenue, as described above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to take all necessary actions to 
file this resolution with the State Boundary Commission and other relevant governmental entities as 
required by law. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Haber. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Mayor Pro-Tem Haber, Councilmembers Olson, Ludington, Owens, and Mayor Teich.  
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmembers Fear and Osmer. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Olson to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
Boards and Commissions Appointment.  Approve the following Mayoral Boards and Commissions 
appointment: 
 

Name Board/Commission Term Expires 

Lance Little 
Owosso Community Airport Board 
filling unexpired term of R. Dean Ebert 

12-31-2027 

 
 

Traffic Control Order Request – Pumpkin Patch Festival.  Approve request from Bella Women’s 
Center for the closure of Ball Street from Mason to Exchange Streets for their Pumpkin Patch Festival 
event on Saturday, September 27, 2025 from 9:00am – 3:00pm and further approve Traffic Control Order 
No. 1544 formalizing the action. 



Draft 5 09-02-2025 

 
 

Traffic Control Order Request – Art Walk Market & Movie.  Approve request from Owosso Farmers 
Market LLC for the closure of Ball Street from the alley south of Fountain Park to Mason Street, including 
access to outlets in Fountain Park, for the Art Walk Market & Movie event on Friday, September 19, 2025 
from 2:00pm – 11:00pm, and further approve Traffic Control Order No. 1545 formalizing the action. 

 
 

*Grant Acceptance – MAMC ADA Infrastructure Grant.  Approve acceptance of an ADA Infrastructure 
Grant from the Michigan Association of Municipal Clerks to assist in the replacement of the City Hall 
basement entry doors with ADA compliant push-button doors and authorize the mayor and city clerk to 
execute all necessary documentation as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 121-2025 
 

ACCEPTING AN ADA INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT 
FROM THE MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF MUNICIPAL CLERKS FOR 

REPLACEMENT OF THE EXTERIOR DOORS TO THE BASEMENT OF CITY HALL 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan currently uses its City Hall as an early 
voting site for State and Federal elections; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has a responsibility to provide ADA accessible access to polling locations whenever 
possible; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has applied and been selected for the funding of a $10,000 grant from the Michigan 
Association of Municipal Clerks (MAMC) to assist the City in ensuring the accessibility of its City Hall 
polling location through the replacement of the exterior basement doors with new push-button operated 
doors. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST:  it hereby accepts the terms of the grant agreement as received from the Michigan 
Association of Municipal Clerks. 

 
SECOND: it hereby agrees to appropriate all funds necessary to complete the project to replace the 

exterior basement doors to City Hall with ADA accessible doors. 
 
THIRD:  it hereby commits to regulate the use of the facility according to the terms of said 

Agreement. 
 
FOURTH: the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and instructed to sign the agreement 

substantially in the form attached. 
 
FIFTH:  the above expenses shall be paid from account no. 101-265-975.000 

 
 

*Professional Services Agreement – Grant Administration for Public Safety Building Project.  Waive 
competitive bidding requirements, approve a professional services agreement with Spicer Group, Inc. for 
design, bidding, grant administration, and construction administration of the Public Safety Building 
Improvements Project in the amount of $127,500.00, and further approve payment to the vendor upon 
satisfactory completion of the project or portion thereof as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 122-2025 
 



Draft 6 09-02-2025 

AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT WITH SPICER GROUP, INC.  
FOR OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has received a $1,000,000 Rural Development grant to complete needed 
improvements at the Public Safety Building, 202 S. Water Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project includes replacement of rooftop units, boiler and heating systems, installation of a 
building management system, plumbing and drainage repairs, kitchen and locker room remodels, 
driveway replacement, and other related work; and 
 
WHEREAS, Spicer Group, Inc. has submitted a proposal dated August 6, 2025 to provide investigation, 
design, bidding, grant administration, and construction administration services in an amount not to exceed 
$127,500; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Ordinance 2-346 allows for a waiver of competitive bidding for professional services, and 
 
WHEREAS, this expense is eligible for reimbursement through said Rural Development grant from the 
USDA. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
contract with Spicer Group, Inc. for professional services related to the Public Safety 
Building Improvements Project in an amount not to exceed $127,500. 

 
SECOND: the mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Agreement Letter and Proposal between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and Spicer Group, Inc. up to the amount of $127,500. 

 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the General Fund, 101-301-976.000 and 101-336-

976.000 
 
 Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.2, 3.7, 3.8 

 
 

*Purchase Authorization – Sanitary Sewer Lift Station Generators.  Waive competitive bidding 
requirements, authorize the purchase and installation of three Generac Commercial Gas XG Series 
generators for the Palmer, Wright, and Osburn Lakes lift stations from Wolverine Power Systems via 
Sourcewell Contract No. 020923 GNR in the amount of $118,125.00, and further authorize payment to 
the vendor upon satisfactory completion of the project or portion thereof as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 123-2025 
 

AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR 

THREE GENERATORS FOR THE CITY’S THREE LIFT STATIONS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires the purchase of three 
generators for the Osburn Lakes, Wright, and Palmer lift stations in its sewer collections system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso’s Director of Public Services & Utilities has reviewed the equipment on 
the Sourcewell competitive contract as priced by Wolverine Power Systems, and recommends authorizing 
a contract with Wolverine Power Systems for the purchase of three (3) generators including: installation, 
startup, training, and one year of maintenance on the Sourcewell Contract; and 
 



Draft 7 09-02-2025 

WHEREAS, waiver of the purchasing policy formal bid requirements is requested for this joint purchase.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
waive competitive bidding requirements and contract with Wolverine Power Systems 
utilizing Sourcewell Contract No. 020923 GNR for the purchase, installation, training, and 
maintenance of three Generac Commercial Gas XG Series generators for the Osburn 
Lakes, Wright, and Palmer lift stations. 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to pay Wolverine Power Systems in the 

amount of $118,125.00 upon satisfactory completion of the project or portion thereof.  
 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the Capital Outlay - Sewers Account No. 590-901-

977.000. 
 

Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.4, 3.7 
 
 
Sole Source Purchase – Limecure-25.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, approve the sole 
source purchase of bulk chemical LimeCure-25 from Applied Specialties Innovations, LLC in the amount 
of $1.21 per pound with an estimated annual contract of $30,250.00, and authorize payment based on 
actual quantities required for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2026 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 124-2025 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE ORDER FOR LIMECURE-25 
WITH APPLIED SPECIALTIES INNOVATIONS, LLC  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AS APPROVED BY THE 
MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires LimeCure-25 in bulk deliveries 
for use in treating municipal drinking water; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) has approved 
the use of LimeCure-25, and it is hereby determined that Applied Specialties Innovations, LLC of Avon 
Lake, Ohio is the only firm qualified and permitted to provide such product in softening residual Lime used 
in the potable water treatment process; and 
 
WHEREAS, waiver of the purchasing policy formal Bid requirements is requested, in order to comply with 
the EGLE permit requirements, and to initiate procurement upon approval and authorization for this sole 
source purchase.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
waive competitive bidding requirements and purchase LimeCure-25 from Applied 
Specialties Innovations, LLC, at the price of $1.21 per pound with an estimated annual 
usage of 25,000 pounds. 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Applied Specialties 

Innovations, LLC of Avon, Ohio in the estimated amount of $30,250.00 for FY2025-2026, 
with the actual amount based on unit prices for  actual demand/usage.    

 



Draft 8 09-02-2025 

THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the water fund following delivery, and chargeable 
to account 591-553-743.000. 

 
 Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.4 

 
 

*Sole Source Purchase – Legal Printing Services.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, approve 
the sole source purchase of legal printing services from The Argus-Press for the period from September 
1, 2025 through June 30, 2026, and authorize payment based on unit prices for actual services rendered 
as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 125-2025 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT  
FOR LEGAL PRINTING SERVICES  

WITH THE ARGUS-PRESS COMPANY 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS 25-26 

 
WHEREAS, various laws and ordinances applying to the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, 
require the publication of legal notices such as public hearing notices, meeting notices, and the minutes 
of meetings in a newspaper of general circulation; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Argus Press is the only remaining newspaper of general circulation in the City of 
Owosso and is qualified to provide such services; and 
 
WHEREAS, waiver of the purchasing policy formal bid requirements is requested for this sole source 
purchase. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore been determined that it is advisable, necessary, and in the public 
interest to waive formal bidding requirements and authorize the employ of The Argus-
Press Company for sole source legal advertising services for the period from September 
1, 2025 through June 30, 2026. 

 
SECOND: the Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached as Exhibit A, Contract for Services Between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and The Argus-Press Company, with the discounted unit prices as follows: 

  

Description 
New Unit 

Price 

Unit Price 
w/ 20% 
discount 

Price for publication of legal notices 
(all submissions will be charged by the column inch) 

$5.00 $4.00 

Price quotation for affidavit of publication 
(required within seven (7) days of publication). 

$11.00 $8.80 

 
THIRD: authorization is given for the above expenses to be paid from account no. 101-215-

802.000 according to unit prices. 
 

 
Emergency Repair Authorization – Fire Department Tower 1.  Authorize payment to Front Line 
Services, Inc. for emergency repair of Fire Department Tower 1 in the amount of $7,166.51 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 126-2025 



Draft 9 09-02-2025 

 
AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO 
FRONT LINE SERVICES INC. 

FOR EMERGENCY REPAIR OF OWOSSO FIRE DEPARTMENT TOWER 1 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a fire department vehicle Tower 1 
that required an emergency repair of the vehicle, and  
 
WHEREAS, the city directed Front Line Services, Inc., to proceed and make the emergency repair, which 
subsequently totaled $7,166.57, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety Chief has reviewed the detailed billing from Front Line Services, Inc. for the 
cost of the repair and recommends payment in the amount of $7,166.57 for the work that was 
satisfactorily completed. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it was necessary and in the public interest to contract 
with Front Line Services, Inc. for emergency repairs to Owosso Fire Department vehicle 
Tower 1. 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Front Line Services 

Inc. in the amount of $7,166.57 as authorized by Council this 2nd day of September 
2025.   

 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the Fire Department vehicle repair fund. 

 
 

*Bid Award – Police Uniforms.  Approve bid from Lansing Uniform Company, Inc. for the supply of 
uniforms for the Owosso Police Department in the amount estimated at $18,885.65), and further approve 
payment to the vendor according to unit prices for actual quantities delivered as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 127-2025 
 

AUTHORIZING THE PREPARATION AND EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT  
WITH LANSING UNIFORM COMPANY, INC.  

FOR THE PURCHASE OF POLICE UNIFORMS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan operates a police department requiring 
the use of police uniforms; and 
 
WHEREAS, funding was budgeted in 2025-2026 budget year for the replacement of police uniforms; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought and received one bid on August 19, 2025 for police uniforms; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bid has been analyzed, and it has been determined it is a responsible and responsive bid 
that is in the city’s best interest. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that advisable, necessary, and in the public interest to 
purchase police uniforms from Lansing Uniform Company, Inc.  

 
SECOND: the mayor and city clerk are hereby authorized and instructed to sign the contract 



Draft 10 09-02-2025 

substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A. 
 
THIRD: the accounts payable department is authorized to pay Lansing Uniform Company, Inc. 

according to unit prices up to the amount estimated at $18,885.65.  
 
FOURTH: the above expense was budgeted for the 2025-2026 fiscal years and shall be paid from 

the Police Division Equipment fund 101-301-741.000. 
 
 

*Bid Award – Lime Residuals Removal.  Approve bid award to MAK Enterprises, L.L.C. for removal of 
approximately 22,450 cubic yards of lime residuals at the Water Treatment Plant in an amount estimated 
at $625,920.00 for the 2025-26 fiscal year and further approve payment to the vendor upon satisfactory 
completion of the project or portion thereof as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 128-2025 
 

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT WITH   
MAK ENTERPRISES, L.L.C. OF MT. PLEASANT, MICHIGAN FOR 

REMOVAL OF LIME RESIDUAL MATERIAL AT THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined it necessary to remove lime residual material at its Water Treatment 
Plant lagoons, to gain lagoon capacity; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for the removal of said lime residuals at the Water Treatment 
Plant; and 
 
WHEREAS, MAK Enterprises, L.L.C. of Mt. Pleasant, Michigan is hereby determined to be the qualified, 
responsible, and low bidder to provide such services; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
employ MAK Enterprises, L.L.C. to remove spent lime in the approximate quantity of 
22,300 cubic yards at $27.90/CY for fiscal year 2025-2026, and approximate quantity of 
150 cubic yards at $25.00/CY for fiscal year 2025-2026.  

 
SECOND: the Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the Contract for Services 

between the City of Owosso, Michigan and MAK Enterprises, L.L.C. as prepared by the 
City Clerk in the approximate estimated amount of $625,920.00 covering the period of 
July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026. 

 
THIRD: the Accounts Payable Department is authorized to pay MAK Enterprises, L.L.C. 

according to unit prices for work satisfactorily completed and certified by the Director of 
Public Services or his designee. 

 
FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from the Water Fund Account 591-553-834.000. 

 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.4 

 
 
Check Register – August 2025.  Affirm check disbursements totaling $1,443,475.47 for August 2025. 
 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Haber. 
 



Draft 11 09-02-2025 

Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Mayor Pro-Tem Haber, Councilmembers Ludington, Owens, Olson, and Mayor Teich. 
 
NAYS: None 
 
ABSENT: Councilmembers Fear and Osmer. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 

*Professional Services Agreement – Public Engagement Platform Services   
 

Master Plan Implementation Goals:  5.17, 6.9, 6.11 
 
City Manager Nathan R. Henne led the discussion regarding the proposal to approve a three-year 
subscription for professional services with Zencity Technologies US Inc. for their Zencity 360 Essentials 
public engagement services platform to assist the City in communicating with its residents more 
effectively.  The app is capable of not only performing surveys, but analyzing the data received, and 
monitoring social media to see what people are saying about the City.  He indicated that he thought the 
app would be particularly helpful when the City has to decide how to handle the new recycling 
requirement. 
 
There was significant discussion regarding the Council’s interest in comparable applications, what budget 
item would need to be cut to fund the purchase, whether the app will be used to steer policy or 
disseminate information, and the cost effectiveness of such an app.  City Manager Henne said he would 
work over the next few weeks to put together an RFP process that would allow Council to compare 
Zencity with its counterparts before making any decision. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Ashley Short, 1607 Young Street, wanted to know what the roll out of an app like Zencity would look like, 
how will people know when it’s up and running, and what the usage stats are for other communities using 
the app.  City Manager indicated he would try to get some usage numbers from other communities. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Councilmember Olson asked about bringing back the water portal and monthly water billing.  She said 
she is able to check on the status of all of her accounts, except her water bill.  It was noted that the 
current BS&A portal may be able to provide the information she’s looking for on her water bill.  The City 
Manager said he would like some time to prepare for a discussion on monthly billing. 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
Nathan R. Henne, City Manager.  City Manager Report – August 2025.  
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

R. Dean Ebert, Owosso Community Airport Board.  Letter of resignation. 
Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  Unpaid parking citations. 
Brad A. Barrett, Finance Director.  Financial Report – July 2025. 
Owosso Historical Commission.  Minutes of August 11, 2025. 
WWTP Review Board.  Minutes of August 26, 2025. 



Draft 12 09-02-2025 

 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, September 15, 2025 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2026 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2027 
DDA/OMS Board – term expires June 30, 2028 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2027 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2028 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Owens for adjournment at 7:42 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Olson and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 
 
 

*Due to their length, text of marked items is not included in the minutes.  Full text of these documents is on 
file in the Clerk's Office. 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   September 15, 2025 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Traffic Control Order #1546 – N Cedar Street closure 
 
 
On June 26, 2025, the city of Owosso Building Official ordered the closure of N Cedar 
Street north of W Main St (M-21) due to the structural condition of the building at 800 W 
Main, per Chapter 1, Section 109.3 of the International Property Maintenance Code 2015 
Edition. 
 
Per section R 28.1127 of the Uniform Traffic Code, the Director of Public Safety ordered an 
emergency traffic control order to close N Cedar Street from W Main St (M-21) north to the 
alley (also known as Eleanor Dr), effective at 10:30am on June 26, 2025.  This emergency 
traffic control order was in effect for a period of 90 days. 
 
Since the structure at 800 W Main has yet to be demolished or deemed structurally stable, 
the street closure must be extended until such time that the building no longer represents a 
threat to the public. 
 
 

 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

 1546    9/5/2025       9:30 am 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

    Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

    Street Closure   
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL     
          
           N Cedar Street from W Main St (M-21) north to alley (Eleanor Dr). 
    
          
  
 DATE:  
 Effective September 24, 2025 after the  90 day emergency order issued on 
June 26, 2025 has expired.  To be in effect until the structure at 800 W Main has 
been demolished or deemed structurally stable. 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL: 
Closure of N Cedar Street from W Main St (M-21) to the alley (also 
known as Eleanor Dr). 

 
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

 
           
 REMARKS 
  
 On June 26, 2025, City of Owosso Building Official ordered the closure 
due to the structural condition of the building at 800 W Main per Chapter 1, 
Section 109.3 of the International Property Maintenance Code 2015 Edition.  
The structure has still not been demolished or deemed structurally stable, so a 
TCO is necessary to extend the street closure.    



 
 
 
 
 
 
  301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   August 22, 2025 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Traffic Control Order #1541 
 
 
Walk to End Alzheimer’s event is requesting the closure of Ada Street for their walk. Event 
is to help bring awareness to the community for both respite support and clinical support. 
 

LOCATION:   
 
Closing Ada St from the Memorial Healthcare parking lot, walking to the dead end 
and back. 

 
DATE: 

 
           September 27th, 2025 
 
           TIME: 
 
           8:30 am – 10:30 am 
 
 
 
The Public Safety Department has issued Traffic Control Order# 1541 in accordance with 
the Rules for the Issuance of Certain Traffic Control Orders. Staff recommends approval 
and further authorization of the traffic control order formalizing the action. 

 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

    1541               08/22/2025   2:25 PM 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

 Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

Street Closure 
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL     
  

Ada Street, from Jennett Street to the dead end 
  

          
 EVENT:    

 
Walk to End Alzheimer’s  
September 27, 2025 
8:30 am – 10:30 am 

 
  
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

                           , 20   
           
 REMARKS 







Wellness Center down Ada St to the dead end and then back is .94 miles. If we loop around the circle 
drive it might get us to a full mile. 

 

 

 



08/20/2025

Lighthouse, an Alera Group Company
56 Cesar E Chavez Ave SW
Ste 300
Grand Rapids MI 49503

Josh Helmstetter
(800) 344-3531 (616) 455-9489

jhelmstetter@lighthousegroup.com

Friends of Pat's Place
101 So. Shiawnsee st.

Corunna MI 48817

United States Liability Ins. 25895

special event

A SE1164738 09/27/2025 09/29/2026

1,000,000
100,000
1,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

For Information Purposes Only

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE
BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED
ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY



 
 
 
 
 
 
   301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   September 4, 2025 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Traffic Control Order #1547 
 
 
OHS is requesting traffic control assistance for their Homecoming Parade route.  
 

LOCATION:   
 
Line up on Washington & Goodhue Streets. Start traveling south on Washington, 
crossing M-21 to Comstock. Turning East on Comstock, turning right (South) onto 
Dewey St. Dewey Street to Jerome Street and turn West. Jerome St to Willman 
Field Gate Entrance off Jerome to access the field. 

 
DATE: 

 
           October 3rd, 2025 
 
           TIME: 
 
           5:00 pm – 7:00 pm 
 
 
 
The Public Safety Department has issued Traffic Control Order# 1547 in accordance with 
the Rules for the Issuance of Certain Traffic Control Orders. Staff recommendS approval 
and further authorization of Traffic Control Order No. 1547 formalizing the action. 

 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

                 1547   09/04/2025   11:00 AM 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

 Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

Street Closures 
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL     
  

Line up:  Washington St, from Oliver to Goodhue    
  Goodhue St, from Washington to Park.  
 
Parade: Washington St, from Oliver to Comstock 
  Comstock St, from Washington to Dewey 
  Dewey St, from Comstock to Jerome 

Jerome Ave, from Dewey east to  Willman Field Gate Entrance off 
Jerome Ave 

  
          
 EVENT:    

 
OHS Homecoming Parade 
October 3, 2025 
5:00 pm – 7:00 pm 

 
  
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

                           , 20   
           
 REMARKS 











 
 

WILLMAN FIELD RULES & SAFETY REGULATIONS 
Welcome to the home of the Owosso Trojans! 

Items not permitted into Willman Field or when approaching the stadium are strictly enforced.  
Owosso Public Schools is not responsible for items left at the gates or in the trash. Staff may also confiscate 

prohibited items. Please follow all signage and directions from district and law enforcement personnel.  
Owosso Public Schools reserves the right to expand or modify the prohibited items at any time. 

MAY BE PERMITTED: 

• Bags that are clear plastic, vinyl or PVC and do not exceed 12” x 6” x 12” 
• One-gallon clear plastic freezer bag (Ziploc bag or similar) 
• Small bags, purses, and fanny packs  
• Diaper bags & infant items, including bottles & formula (only if accompanied by a child) 
• Medically necessary items including insulin, medication, portable oxygen, small soft pack coolers & breast pumps 
• Binoculars & binocular cases 
• Cameras & small camera cases  
• Small radios (must be used with an earpiece or headphones) 
• Umbrellas (compact size recommended) 
• Handheld posters & signs without poles or sticks (must not block another guest’s view) 
• Battery-operated clothing or signs if approved after thorough inspection. Loose batteries & wires are not allowed. 
• Tablets (iPads, Kindles, etc.). Inappropriate subject matter should not be displayed and must not block another guest’s view. 
• Handouts, items or goods intended for authorized sale, promotion, exchange or giveaway, with express permission from the district 
• Seat cushions and folding chairs 
• Blankets 

 

WILL NOT BE PERMITTED (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO): 

• No weapons are allowed on school grounds, inclusive of the stadium, per school policy.  
• Backpacks, book bags, luggage, grocery & paper bags, duffle bags, or briefcases 
• Tobacco products (cigarettes, vapes, nicotine pouches, etc.) are not allowed on school grounds, inclusive of the stadium, per school policy. 
• Illegal substances 
• Marijuana, including medically prescribed, electronic accessories or paraphernalia associated with marijuana or illegal narcotics use. 
• Knives, pocket knives, box cutters, scissors, etc. 
• Food, beverages or liquids (cans, bottles, water bottles, flasks, cups, boxes, popcorn buckets, etc.) 
• Aerosol cans (hairspray, mace, pepper spray, etc.) 
• Animals (except certified service animals to aid guests with disabilities) 
• Decals, stickers, confetti or glitter 
• Drones and/or remote controlled aircraft 
• Fireworks 
• Laser pointers 
• Objects that can be used as missiles or projectiles (sticks, poles, bats, clubs, Frisbees, etc.) 
• Offensive or profane messages or images on signs & clothing that are distasteful or indecent 
• Wrapped gifts 

All students in 8th grade or younger MUST be accompanied by an adult to enter the stadium for any activity (ex: football 
games, soccer games, etc.). Owosso students will be granted free admission with a paid adult. 
 
High school students must bring current Owosso student IDs to gain entrance for free. If students have lost or are unable 
to locate ID, a printed schedule from PowerSchool with a picture ID will be accepted. Students without proper ID must 
purchase a ticket to enter the event. 
 
We kindly request all guests use the front gate or tunnel entrance when walking in. Handicap parking is available at the 
east gate, off Oakwood Street. Foot traffic will not be allowed at the east gate. 

Student re-entry will not be permitted once you leave the stadium. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
   301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   September 10, 2025 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Traffic Control Order #1548 
 
 
OPS is requesting assistance for the MSBOA District 5 Marching Band Festival in the 
Willman Field area, ball fields areas and Kiwanis Park for this event.  
 

LOCATION:   
 
Oakwood Ave, from Grover St to the foot bridge,  Jerome Avenue and Oakwood 
Avenue intersection, Jerome Ave from Dewey Street to Oakwood Ave. 

 
DATE: 

 
           October 13, 2025 (Rain date of October 20th) 
 
           TIME: 
 
           2:30 pm – 10:00 pm 
 
 
 
The Public Safety Department has issued Traffic Control Order# 1548 in accordance with 
the Rules for the Issuance of Certain Traffic Control Orders. Staff recommends approval 
and further authorization of said traffic control order formalizing the action. 

 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

                 1548   09/10/2025   10:00 AM 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

 Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

Street Closures 
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL     
  

Oakwood Ave, from Grover St to the foot bridge  
Jerome Avenue and Oakwood Avenue intersection 
Jerome Ave from Dewey Street to Oakwood Ave  

          
 EVENT:    

 
MSBOA District 5 Marching Band Festival 
October 13, 2025  (Rain Date October 20th) 
2:30 pm – 10:00 pm 

 
  
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

                           , 20   
           
 REMARKS 























 
 
 
 
 
 
  301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:   September 8, 2025 
 
TO: Owosso City Council   
 
FROM:  Kevin Lenkart, Public Safety Chief 
  
RE:    All Star Towing & Repair LLC– Payment Authorization   
 
 
Public Safety staff requests City Council approve payment to All Star Towing  & Repair LLC, in the 
amount of $2,054.50 for the emergency repair of Owosso Police vehicle # 2. Payment will be from 
the Police Department vehicle repair fund.  
 
In August 2025, Owosso Police Department (OPD) staff noticed that the brakes needed to be serviced.  
Staff from All Star Towing inspected the vehicle and found that it  needed immediate emergency 
repair.  
 
The staff at All Star Towing recommended completing the necessary repairs to ensure the safety and 
integrity of the vehicle. The invoice is attached to the memo.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO 

ALL STAR TOWING & REPAIR LLC 
FOR EMERGENCY REPAIR OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT VEHICLE 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a police department vehicle that 
required emergency repairs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city directed All Star Towing & Repair LLC to proceed and make the emergency repairs, 
which subsequently totaled $2,054.50; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety Chief has reviewed the detailed billing from All Star Towing & Repair LLC 
for the cost of the repairs and recommends payment in the amount of $2,054.5.00 for the work that was 
satisfactorily completed. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it was necessary and in the public interest to contract 
with All Star Towing & Repair LLC for the emergency repairs to Owosso Police 
Department Vehicle #2. 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to All Star Towing & 

Repair LLC in the amount up to $2,054.50 as authorized by Council this 15th day of 
September, 2025.   

 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the Police Department vehicle repair fund. 

 
 
 





 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
DATE: September 15, 2025 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: 2025 Well Improvements Project Change Order #1 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of increased payment for construction work by Sorenson Gross Company (Flint, MI) for 
the 2025 Well Improvements project in the amount of $480,653.00.  
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The City of Owosso has two wells that are due for rehabilitation in order to maintain them as 
reliable municipal wells producing quality drinking water.  As well as to protect the sites, and the 
source water as the drinking water for the residents of the City of Owosso and the surrounding 
communities also being served by the City’s Water Treatment Plant. Specifically Palmer 2 well, 
and Local Well 1, are the two wells due and in need of rehabilitation and upgrades. This work 
includes: 

• Building 
• Electrical 
• Mechanical 
• Security 

 
Additionally, the abandonment of Palmer 1 well is needed. This work includes: 

• Permanent electrical disconnect 
• Isolation of the raw water main 
• Demolition of all piping and the well building 
• Demolition of the concrete foundation 
• Contracted legal abandonment of the well by a qualified contractor 
• Site cleanup and restoration 

 
 
This project is essential to ensuring a safe and resilient water supply for the City of Owosso’s 
residents, and our surrounding communities which also rely on our quality drinking water supply, 
by maintaining and upgrading critical infrastructure and modernizing systems to meet current and 
future demands. 
 
City Council previously approved the start to this project at its regular scheduled meeting held on 
November 18, 2024. 

 
 
 
 



 
 
On May 20, 2025, the City received bids for the WTP Filters Improvements Project. 
 
On June 2, 2025, City Council approved the low responsive bid from Sorenson Gross Company. 
(Flint, MI) for the WTP Filter Improvements in the amount of $1,347,000.00. 
 
An unforeseen issue arose with seventeen (17) valves not working. A proposal was received from 
Sorenson Gross Company in the amount of $480,653.00 and adding zero (0) days to the contract 
time, which includes: 

• Time and materials to remove remaining valves, and install seventeen (17) new 
valves and actuators, so work can continue. 

 
This change order is contingent upon EGLE approval, which has been requested but we are still 
waiting on a response. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The project is funded by the DWSRF, with the additional costs of $480,653.00.  
Final expenses in the amount of $1,827,653.00 shall be paid from Water Fund and 2025 SRF 
Bond funds. This change order is contingent upon EGLE approval. 
 
 
 
Document originated by:  Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: (1) Resolution 
 (2) Change Order 
  
  
MASTER PLAN GOALS:  3.4, 3.7, 3.8, 6.6 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 

SORENSON GROSS COMPANY OF FLINT, MICHIGAN 
FOR 2025 WELL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

FOR WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with 
Sorenson Gross Company, on June 2, 2025 for improvements to its existing water distribution 
system, known as the 2025 Well Improvements Project, which is a planned and approved 2025 
SRF project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project is now underway and a change order is necessary to reconcile contract 
work and supplies to be used. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 
interest to amend the 2025 Wells Improvements Project contract with Sorenson 
Gross Company to increase the contract amount for the replacement of 17 non-
working valves and actuators. 

 
SECOND: the Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in form attached as Change Order No. 1 in the amount of 
$480,653.00; an increase to the Contract for Services between the City of 
Owosso and Sorenson Gross Company revising the total current contract 
amount from $1,347,000.00 to $1,827,653.00. 

 
THIRD: the Accounts Payable department is authorized to pay Sorenson Gross 

Company for work satisfactorily completed up to the revised contract amount of 
$1,827,653.00. 

 
FOURTH: the above additional expenses of $480,653.00, are contingent upon EGLE’s 

approval. 
 
FIFTH: the above expenses shall be paid from the Water Fund, and SRF Bond Funds 
 



City of Owosso
Well Improvements
Fishbeck Project No. 241848/DWSRF No. 7880-01

CHANGE ORDER
PAGE 1 OF 2

\\CORP.FTCH.COM\ALLPROJECTS\2024\241848\WORK\CONTRACTS\ECD\CO1\CO1_2025_0730.DOCX

Change Order No.1 

Date: July 30, 2025  

CONTRACT FOR: City of Owosso Well Improvements

OWNER: City of Owosso
301 West Main Street
Owosso, MI 48867  

CONTRACTOR: Sorensen Gross Company
111 East Court Street, Suite 1-S
Flint, MI 48502  

ENGINEER: Fishbeck
5913 Executive Drive, Suite 100
Lansing, MI 48911

ATTACHMENTS: CE#01 re: Replace 17 valves and actuators. Wire electric actuators and program into SCADA.

Contractor shall indicate approval of Change Order through signing of this document and returning to Engineer. 
Engineer will forward to Owner, who shall indicate approval of Change Order through signing of this document and 
returning to Engineer. Upon receipt of fully executed (all signatures) Change Order, Engineer will distribute to all 
parties.

YOU ARE DIRECTED TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING CHANGES IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 

ITEM NO. 1:
Valve and actuator replacement.

ADD: $480,653 and 0 Days

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES:

Original Contract Price: Original Contract time:

Substantial Completion: September 1, 2026

$1,347,000 Ready for final payment: October 1, 2026

Previous Change Order No.: N/A Net change from previous Change Orders:

$0.00     Days  

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Time prior to this Change Order:

Substantial Completion: September 1, 2026

$1,347,000 Ready for final payment: October 1, 2026

Net increase (decrease) of this Change Order: Net increase or decrease of this Change Order:

$480,653 0 Days

Contract Price with all approved Change Orders: Contract Time with all approved Change Orders:

Substantial Completion: September 1, 2026

$1,827,653 Ready for final payment: October 1, 2026



City of Owosso
Well Improvements
Fishbeck Project No. 241848/DWSRF No. 7880-01

CHANGE ORDER
PAGE 2 OF 2

\\CORP.FTCH.COM\ALLPROJECTS\2024\241848\WORK\CONTRACTS\ECD\CO1\CO1_2025_0730.DOCX

Change Order No.1 

Date: July 30, 2025  

RECOMMENDED APPROVED APPROVED

By: By: By:
Engineer Contractor Owner

Brian VanZee
Sr. Water/Wastewater Engineer , , 

Name and Title of Signatory Name and Title of Signatory Name and Title of Signatory

Date: July 30, 2025
Date
: Date:

END OF CHANGE ORDER

Roland Abi Younes
Project Manager

August 26, 2025

























 

 

Warrant 659 
August 29, 2025 

 

 

 

Date Vendor Description Fund Amount 

08/29/2025 Shiawassee Economic 
Development Partnership 

Annual Investment Pledge (2025-2026) General $40,000 

   TOTAL $40,000 



 
 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0570  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:   August 29, 2025 
 
TO:   Owosso City Council     
 
FROM:   Brad Barrett, Finance Director 
  
SUBJECT: SATA Annual Commitment – October 1, 2025-September 30, 2026 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the commitment in an amount not to exceed $117,682.97 to SATA for 
transportation services from October 1, 2025 to September 30, 2026.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City of Owosso is a participating community with Shiawassee Area Transportation 
Agency (SATA). Each year the agency requests a commitment of funds from participating 
communities.  
 
The City of Owosso levies a voter approved millage for transportation services. The current 
millage expires in December 2028 and is affected by millage reduction fractions (rollbacks) 
and captures by the Downtown Development Authority and Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority. The approved millage rate after rollbacks and tax captures does not generate 
enough revenue to cover the financial commitment requested by SATA.  
 
It is estimated the city will be short at least $8,036.97 in 2026-2027. City administration has 
worked with SATA to find eligible services that qualify for funding under Opioid Settlement 
agreements to close this year’s funding gap and future shortfalls. If these funds are not 
available and/or services no longer qualify under a settlement agreement, the General 
Fund will need to cover the estimated shortfall in the Transportation Fund.  
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
Breakdown of estimated Revenue/Expenditure for the Transportation Fund in 2026-2027: 
 
Net Taxable Value 2025* 330,305,037 
Estimated consumer price index for 2026 2.9% 
Net Taxable Value 2026 339,883,883 
  
Transportation Millage rate 2025 .3262 
Estimated millage reduction fraction .9892 
Transportation Millage rate 2026 .3226 
Revenue estimate from 2026 millage rate $109,646 
SATA Commitment Request $117,682.97 
Net Revenue/Expenditures -$8,036.97 

*net taxable value is after DDA TIF capture, OBRA TIF captures and Landbank 5/50 
special act rolls 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
The financial commitment from SATA and the estimated revenue generated from the voter 
approved millage is estimated at a loss. Funds will either need to come from the General 
Fund and or the Opioid Settlement Fund to cover the loss, at an amount starting at $8,037. 
  



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

APPROVING THE SHIAWASSEE AREA TRANSPORTATION AGENCY (SATA) 
COMMITMENT FOR 2026 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso is a member of the Shiawassee Area Transportation Agency 
(SATA), a public transportation service committed to providing safe, reliable, and affordable 
transportation to the citizens of Shiawassee County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SATA Board of Directors has approved the budget for the fiscal year beginning 
October 1, 2025, and ending September 30, 2026; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso’s share of the total local funding request for the fiscal year is 
$117,682.97, which reflects the City's proportional share based on the established funding model; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, this commitment from the City of Owosso is necessary to ensure the continued 
provision of essential transportation services to the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, SATA has requested that the City of Owosso forward their commitment regarding 
this funding request by August 26, 2025. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 

 
FIRST: it hereby approves the commitment of $117,682.97 to the Shiawassee Area 

Transportation Agency (SATA) for their fiscal year October 1, 2025, through 
September 30, 2026. 

 
SECOND: the City Manager is authorized to sign and submit any necessary documentation 

to confirm the City's commitment to SATA. 
 
THIRD: the funds for this commitment shall be allocated from the Transportation Fund – 

Contractual Services:  588-200-818.000 and any other funds approved by 
Council. 





 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0570  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

DATE:   Sept 10, 2025 
 
TO:   City Council     
 
FROM:   City Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Water Portal Proposal 
 
 

Background 
The attached resolution proposes reactivating the Silverblaze (formerly ACE) Customer 
Engagement Portal, which previously provided residents with online access to water usage data, 
billing history, leak alerts, and payment options. The City discontinued the service in late 2024 
after fewer than four percent of residents enrolled in the portal over its three years of availability. 

Under the July 17, 2025 proposal, Silverblaze is requesting an annual subscription (SaaS) fee of 
$25,000.00 for hosting, maintenance, and support.  This is the same rate as before. 
Implementation and ongoing management would require significant coordination with the City’s 
IT department. Based on current staffing levels, the workload might require moving the City’s IT 
professional from part-time to full-time, increasing recurring personnel costs. 

Recommendation 
I recommend that Council not approve the resolution to reactivate the Silverblaze Water 
Customer Portal. 

  MASTER PLAN GOALS:  3.3, 3.4 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF PRICING PROPOSAL  
FROM SILVERBLAZE SOLUTIONS INC.  

FOR ITS CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT PORTAL 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso previously offered residents the ACE (now Silverblaze) Customer 
Engagement Portal, providing online access to water usage data and leak alerts; and 
 
WHEREAS, the service was discontinued in late 2024 due to low utilization, with less than four percent of 
residents enrolled; and 
 
WHEREAS, Silverblaze Solutions Inc. has proposed reactivating the same portal configuration, which 
includes: 

• An annual subscription (SaaS) fee of Twenty-Five Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($25,000.00) for 
ongoing hosting, maintenance, and support, with a 5% annual increase; and 

 
WHEREAS, Silverblaze Solutions Inc. has agreed to waive all reconnection fees for the City of Owosso; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, restoring the portal will improve customer service, transparency, and self-service options for 
utility customers. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, 
Shiawassee County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
execute an agreement with Silverblaze Solutions Inc. to reactivate the Customer 
Engagement Portal for a cost to the City of Owosso of: 

1. $25,000 for Core Portal functions for a one-year period. 
 
SECOND: the City Manager is instructed and authorized to sign the document, substantially in the 

form attached, Silverblaze Customer Engagement Proposal:  Re-Launch, in the amount 
of $25,000. 

 
THIRD: the accounts payable department is hereby authorized to pay the vendor up to the 

contract amount upon successful implementation of the software. 
 
FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from the following funds: 

1. Water Fund 
2. Sewer Fund 

 
  
 
 













Owosso City Council

Building Department

Report Month:

From:

To: 

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

AUGUST 2025

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES $0 $150 2
DEMOLITION $24,000 $560 3
Electrical $0 $4,235 23
FENCE PERMIT $0 $85 3
FOUNDATION - RESIDENTIAL $23,236 $405 1
Mechanical $0 $5,875 25
NEW BUSINESS $0 $0 1
Plumbing $0 $1,370 8
RAMP $0 $0 1
RES. ADD/ALTER/REPAIR $8,845 $165 2
RES. MOBILE NEW $150,000 $1,450 5
ROOF $215,016 $2,880 12
ROW-ENG $0 $100 2
ROW-OTHER $0 $0 1
ROW-UTILITY $0 $250 5
SIDING $12,000 $90 1
SOLAR PANELS $11,086 $205 1
UTILITIES $0 $50 1
WINDOWS $2,800 $180 2

Totals $18,050 99$446,983

2024 COMPARISON TOTALS

$685,305 $28,975 208AUGUSST 2024











Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

1/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES

08/26/2025 10/27/2025ENF 24-0655 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/17/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NDEWEY ST

Total Entries 1

APPLIANCES

08/05/2025ENF 25-0593 CLOSED 06/24/2025 08/05/2025RESOLVED NLYNN ST

08/21/2025 09/04/2025ENF 25-0816 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHICKORY ST

Total Entries 2

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH

08/04/2025ENF 25-0742 CLOSED 08/04/2025 08/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NLANSING ST

08/05/2025ENF 25-0727 CLOSED 07/29/2025 08/05/2025RESOLVED NABBOTT ST

08/19/2025ENF 25-0716 CLOSED 07/28/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED YCOMSTOCK ST

08/27/2025 09/10/2025ENF 25-0835 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/27/2025LETTER SENT YHICKORY ST

08/28/2025 09/11/2025ENF 25-0569 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/17/2025LETTER SENT NBALL ST

08/28/2025 09/11/2025ENF 25-0838 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/28/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBALL ST

Total Entries 6

BRUSH PILES

08/04/2025ENF 25-0669 CLOSED 07/14/2025 08/04/2025RESOLVED YHICKORY ST

08/18/2025ENF 25-0797 CLOSED 08/18/2025 08/18/2025RESOLVED YPEARCE ST

08/28/2025ENF 25-0756 CLOSED 08/07/2025 08/28/2025RESOLVED NCHIPMAN ST

08/28/2025ENF 25-0757 CLOSED 08/07/2025 08/28/2025RESOLVED NHARDING AVE

Total Entries 4

BUILDING VIOL



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

2/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/04/2025 09/04/2025ENF 21-1484 RECHECK SCHEDULED 09/27/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY VACSAGINAW ST

08/04/2025 09/04/2025ENF 23-0673 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/10/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NSAGINAW ST

08/05/2025 09/04/2025ENF 21-1156 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/01/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NWILLIAMS ST

08/25/2025 09/25/2025ENF 22-0167 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/15/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY NCEDAR ST

08/25/2025ENF 23-0631 CLOSED 06/22/2023 08/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSAGINAW ST

08/26/2025ENF 22-0677 CLOSED 05/19/2022 08/26/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACSHIAWASSEE ST

08/28/2025 09/29/2025ENF 21-0307 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/03/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMWASHINGTON ST

Total Entries 7

BUILDING VIOLATIONS

08/05/2025 10/06/2025ENF 25-0088 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/05/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMMAIN ST

08/11/2025 09/08/2025ENF 24-1236 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/06/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTGREEN ST

08/18/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0221 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/18/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTGENESEE ST

08/18/2025 09/04/2025ENF 25-0346 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

08/19/2025 09/22/2025ENF 25-0477 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/20/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

YOUNG ST

08/19/2025 09/04/2025ENF 25-0730 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/31/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCEDAR ST

08/19/2025 09/02/2025ENF 25-0772 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YADAMS ST

08/26/2025ENF 25-0801 CLOSED 08/19/2025 08/26/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWILLOW ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0814 CLOSED 08/21/2025 09/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NTRACY ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0827 CLOSED 08/25/2025 09/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

Total Entries 10

BUSHES-SIDEWALK VISIBILITY



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

3/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/05/2025ENF 25-0744 CLOSED 08/05/2025 08/06/2025RESOLVED YSHIAWASSEE ST

Total Entries 1

CHICKENS/DUCKS

08/18/2025ENF 24-1281 CLOSED 08/13/2024 08/18/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NFREDERICK ST

08/20/2025 09/18/2025ENF 25-0323 LEGAL ACTION 04/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NRIDGE ST

Total Entries 2

EXTERIOR PAINT/SIDING

08/18/2025 09/29/2025ENF 24-0981 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/10/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY YLANSING ST

Total Entries 1

FENCE VIOLATION

08/04/2025ENF 25-0513 CLOSED 05/29/2025 08/04/2025RESOLVED NRYAN ST

08/26/2025ENF 25-0811 CLOSED 08/20/2025 08/26/2025OBTAINED PERMIT NALGER AVE

Total Entries 2

FIRE DAMAGE

08/04/2025 09/04/2025ENF 24-1816 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/08/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTGUTE ST

Total Entries 1

FRONT YARD PARKING

08/05/2025ENF 25-0676 CLOSED 07/15/2025 08/05/2025LETTER SENT NGOULD ST

08/05/2025ENF 25-0699 CLOSED 07/22/2025 08/05/2025RESOLVED NSUMMIT ST

08/11/2025ENF 25-0663 CLOSED 07/14/2025 08/11/2025RESOLVED NHUNTINGTON DR

08/12/2025ENF 25-0724 CLOSED 07/29/2025 08/12/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

08/12/2025ENF 25-0749 CLOSED 08/06/2025 08/12/2025RESOLVED NCHIPMAN ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

4/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/19/2025ENF 25-0695 CLOSED 07/21/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED NMASON ST

08/19/2025ENF 25-0719 CLOSED 07/29/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED NADAMS ST

08/19/2025ENF 25-0785 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED YFREDERICK ST

08/26/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0553 RE-OPENED 06/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSHIAWASSEE ST

08/26/2025 09/09/2025ENF 25-0804 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/19/2025LETTER SENT YSTEWART ST

08/26/2025ENF 25-0812 CLOSED 08/20/2025 08/26/2025RESOLVED NKING ST

Total Entries 11

FURNITURE OUTSIDE

08/11/2025ENF 25-0746 CLOSED 08/05/2025 08/11/2025RESOLVED NDEWEY ST

08/12/2025ENF 25-0758 CLOSED 08/07/2025 08/12/2025RESOLVED YPINE ST

08/19/2025ENF 25-0650 CLOSED 07/09/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED NCORUNNA AVE

Total Entries 3

GARBAGE & DEBRIS

08/04/2025ENF 25-0470 CLOSED 05/19/2025 08/04/2025RESOLVED NMACK ST

08/05/2025 09/04/2025ENF 23-1355 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/12/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NWILLIAMS ST

08/06/2025ENF 25-0604 CLOSED 06/25/2025 08/06/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCOMSTOCK ST

08/06/2025ENF 25-0710 CLOSED 07/23/2025 08/06/2025RESOLVED YAMENT ST

08/07/2025ENF 24-0008 CLOSED 01/04/2024 08/07/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE

08/19/2025ENF 25-0726 CLOSED 07/29/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED NKENWOOD DR

08/19/2025ENF 25-0759 CLOSED 08/07/2025 08/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NOLIVER ST

08/20/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0679 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/16/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

08/25/2025ENF 24-1991 CLOSED 12/19/2024 08/25/2025RESOLVED YBRANDON ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

5/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0621 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/07/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YSTEWART ST

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0634 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/07/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMCHIPMAN ST

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0771 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSOUTH ST

08/26/2025 09/09/2025ENF 24-0614 PENDING 1ST TICKET 04/04/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NKENWOOD DR

08/26/2025ENF 25-0670 CLOSED 07/15/2025 08/26/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NLINGLE AVE

08/26/2025 09/09/2025ENF 25-0696 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NYOUNG ST

08/26/2025ENF 25-0750 CLOSED 08/06/2025 08/26/2025RESOLVED YFLETCHER ST

08/26/2025 09/22/2025ENF 25-0777 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/12/2025EMAILED OWNER COMMROBBINS ST

08/26/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0834 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/26/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NOLIVER ST

08/28/2025 09/11/2025ENF 24-0651 RECHECK SCHEDULED 04/16/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NHOWARD ST

08/28/2025 09/11/2025ENF 24-1508 RECHECK SCHEDULED 09/23/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NFLETCHER ST

08/28/2025ENF 25-0786 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/28/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NTRACY ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0809 CLOSED 08/20/2025 09/02/2025RESOLVED YSTEWART ST

Total Entries 22

GARBAGE CANS

08/11/2025ENF 25-0740 CLOSED 08/04/2025 08/11/2025RESOLVED NADAMS ST

08/25/2025ENF 25-0823 CLOSED 08/25/2025 08/25/2025RESOLVED NISHAM ST

Total Entries 2

GARBAGE/JUNK IN ROW

08/04/2025ENF 25-0714 CLOSED 07/28/2025 08/04/2025RESOLVED YPINE ST

08/05/2025ENF 25-0703 CLOSED 07/22/2025 08/05/2025RESOLVED NDEWEY ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

6/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/05/2025ENF 25-0709 CLOSED 07/23/2025 08/05/2025RESOLVED YGREEN ST

08/05/2025ENF 25-0720 CLOSED 07/29/2025 08/05/2025RESOLVED NSUMMIT ST

08/05/2025ENF 25-0721 CLOSED 07/29/2025 08/05/2025RESOLVED NOLIVER ST

08/05/2025ENF 25-0731 CLOSED 07/31/2025 08/05/2025RESOLVED NJEROME AVE

08/05/2025ENF 25-0732 CLOSED 07/31/2025 08/05/2025RESOLVED YCORUNNA AVE

08/06/2025ENF 25-0723 CLOSED 07/29/2025 08/06/2025RESOLVED NCEDAR ST

08/11/2025ENF 25-0739 CLOSED 08/04/2025 08/11/2025RESOLVED YADAMS ST

08/11/2025ENF 25-0743 CLOSED 08/04/2025 08/11/2025RESOLVED NWASHINGTON ST

08/11/2025ENF 25-0753 CLOSED 08/06/2025 08/12/2025RESOLVED YMAIN ST

08/12/2025ENF 25-0675 CLOSED 07/15/2025 08/12/2025RESOLVED YCLINTON ST

08/12/2025ENF 25-0717 CLOSED 07/28/2025 08/12/2025RESOLVED YSTEWART ST

08/12/2025ENF 25-0754 CLOSED 08/06/2025 08/12/2025RESOLVED NSTRATFORD DR

08/13/2025ENF 25-0748 CLOSED 08/06/2025 08/13/2025RESOLVED YAMENT ST

08/13/2025ENF 25-0752 CLOSED 08/06/2025 08/13/2025RESOLVED YPINE ST

08/18/2025ENF 25-0690 CLOSED 07/21/2025 08/18/2025RESOLVED YPINE ST

08/18/2025ENF 25-0761 CLOSED 08/11/2025 08/18/2025RESOLVED NSUMMIT ST

08/18/2025ENF 25-0762 CLOSED 08/11/2025 08/18/2025RESOLVED NHUNTINGTON DR

08/18/2025ENF 25-0765 CLOSED 08/11/2025 08/18/2025RESOLVED NSTEWART ST

08/18/2025ENF 25-0766 CLOSED 08/11/2025 08/18/2025RESOLVED YCASS ST

08/18/2025ENF 25-0768 CLOSED 08/11/2025 08/18/2025RESOLVED NPRINDLE ST

08/18/2025ENF 25-0770 CLOSED 08/11/2025 08/18/2025RESOLVED YCEDAR ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

7/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/19/2025ENF 25-0713 CLOSED 07/28/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED YELIZABETH ST

08/19/2025ENF 25-0745 CLOSED 08/05/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED YADAMS ST

08/19/2025ENF 25-0776 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED NKING ST

08/19/2025ENF 25-0781 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED YSTEWART ST

08/19/2025ENF 25-0784 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED YDEWEY ST

08/20/2025ENF 25-0734 CLOSED 08/04/2025 08/20/2025RESOLVED YSTEWART ST

08/20/2025ENF 25-0788 CLOSED 08/13/2025 08/20/2025RESOLVED NWATER ST

08/21/2025ENF 25-0649 CLOSED 07/09/2025 08/21/2025RESOLVED NCOMSTOCK ST

08/21/2025ENF 25-0741 CLOSED 08/04/2025 08/21/2025RESOLVED NHICKORY ST

08/21/2025ENF 25-0747 CLOSED 08/05/2025 08/21/2025RESOLVED NHOWELL ST

08/26/2025 09/09/2025ENF 25-0632 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/07/2025LETTER SENT NPINE ST

08/26/2025ENF 25-0774 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/26/2025RESOLVED NWASHINGTON ST

08/26/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0799 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YKING ST

08/26/2025ENF 25-0807 CLOSED 08/20/2025 08/26/2025RESOLVED NSTEWART ST

08/26/2025ENF 25-0815 CLOSED 08/21/2025 08/26/2025RESOLVED NSAGINAW ST

08/26/2025ENF 25-0818 CLOSED 08/21/2025 08/26/2025RESOLVED NHICKORY ST

08/26/2025ENF 25-0819 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/21/2025 08/26/2025RESOLVED NMAIN ST

08/26/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0832 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/26/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

08/26/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0833 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/26/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YWALNUT ST

08/27/2025ENF 25-0806 CLOSED 08/19/2025 08/27/2025RESOLVED NKING ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

8/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/27/2025 09/04/2025ENF 25-0810 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/20/2025LETTER SENT NBROADWAY AVE

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0836 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/27/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCLYDE ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0837 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/27/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NDEWEY ST

08/28/2025ENF 25-0790 CLOSED 08/13/2025 08/28/2025RESOLVED NOLMSTEAD ST

08/28/2025ENF 25-0813 CLOSED 08/21/2025 08/28/2025RESOLVEDFLETCHER ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0783 CLOSED 08/12/2025 09/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NADAMS ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0805 CLOSED 08/19/2025 09/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NRANDOLPH ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0826 CLOSED 08/25/2025 09/02/2025RESOLVED NWILKINSON ST

09/02/2025 09/09/2025ENF 25-0829 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/25/2025EMAILED OWNER YDEWEY ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0830 CLOSED 08/26/2025 09/02/2025RESOLVED NPINE ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0831 CLOSED 08/26/2025 09/02/2025RESOLVED YPINE ST

Total Entries 54

HDC - NOTICE OF VIOLATION

08/28/2025 09/29/2025ENF 24-1717 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/24/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMEXCHANGE ST

Total Entries 1

HEALTH & SAFETY

08/07/2025ENF 25-0701 CLOSED 07/22/2025 08/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

08/07/2025ENF 25-0702 CLOSED 07/22/2025 08/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

08/11/2025 09/11/2025ENF 21-0921 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/23/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY VACCORUNNA AVE

Total Entries 3

HOUSE FIRE

07/31/2025ENF 25-0733 CLOSED 08/01/2025 08/01/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YPEARCE ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

9/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/18/2025 09/18/2025ENF 24-1057 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/25/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NCASS ST

Total Entries 2

IMMINENT DANGER OF STRUCTURE

08/11/2025 09/11/2025ENF 25-0609 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMMAIN ST

08/26/2025 09/17/2025ENF 22-0059 RECHECK SCHEDULED 01/21/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY VACDEWEY ST

Total Entries 2

LAWN MAINTENANCE

08/06/2025ENF 25-0421 CLOSED 05/15/2025 08/06/2025RESOLVED YSHIAWASSEE ST

08/06/2025ENF 25-0430 CLOSED 05/15/2025 08/06/2025RESOLVED NFLETCHER ST

08/06/2025ENF 25-0700 CLOSED 07/22/2025 08/06/2025RESOLVED VACANTWOODLAWN AVE

08/06/2025ENF 25-0706 CLOSED 07/23/2025 08/06/2025RESOLVED NCORUNNA AVE

08/18/2025ENF 25-0792 CLOSED 08/18/2025 08/18/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

08/19/2025ENF 25-0782 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED VACANT
LOT

WASHINGTON ST

08/20/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0440 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

MAIN ST

08/20/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0516 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

CEDAR ST

08/20/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0548 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YMASON ST

08/20/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0728 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/30/2025INSPECTED PROPERTYBALL ST

08/25/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0592 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/24/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YSTEWART ST

08/25/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0824 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/25/2025LETTER SENT YFREDERICK ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0424 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY INDSHIAWASSEE ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

10/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0426 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTDEWEY ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0427 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

ELM ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0433 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

CEDAR ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0435 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

PARK ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0436 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0437 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY INDMCMILLAN AVE

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0439 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

MASON ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0442 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/15/2025REF TO MOWING
CONTRACTOR

VACANT
HOUSE

ADAMS ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0445 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

PINE ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0456 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTATE ST

08/27/2025ENF 25-0473 CLOSED 05/20/2025 09/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NDIVISION ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0484 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/20/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YALGER AVE

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0494 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

CEDAR ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0500 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/28/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

STATE

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0511 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

GENESEE ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0517 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

08/27/2025 09/10/2025ENF 25-0535 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

PEARCE ST

08/27/2025 09/10/2025ENF 25-0606 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY INDCHIPMAN ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

11/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/27/2025ENF 25-0715 CLOSED 07/28/2025 08/27/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YHICKORY ST

08/27/2025ENF 25-0729 CLOSED 07/31/2025 08/27/2025RESOLVED VACANT
LOT

WEST ST

08/27/2025ENF 25-0791 CLOSED 08/18/2025 08/27/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NISHAM ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0796 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/18/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

08/27/2025ENF 25-0798 CLOSED 08/18/2025 08/27/2025RESOLVED NRYAN ST

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0802 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

Total Entries 37

LIGHTING VIOLATION

08/18/2025ENF 25-0718 CLOSED 07/29/2025 08/18/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSUMMIT ST

Total Entries 1

MULTIPLE VIOLATIONS

08/04/2025 09/04/2025ENF 25-0035 RECHECK SCHEDULED 01/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NADAMS ST

08/04/2025 09/04/2025ENF 25-0162 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NFLETCHER ST

08/04/2025ENF 25-0471 CLOSED 05/19/2025 08/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YSHIAWASSEE ST

08/04/2025ENF 25-0687 CLOSED 07/21/2025 08/04/2025RESOLVED NPARK ST

08/05/2025ENF 25-0330 CLOSED 04/23/2025 08/05/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACOLIVER ST

08/06/2025ENF 24-0091 RESOLVED 02/06/2024 08/06/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTATE ST

08/06/2025ENF 25-0678 CLOSED 07/16/2025 08/06/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

GENESEE ST

08/11/2025ENF 25-0063 CLOSED 02/03/2025 08/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NGRAND AVE

08/12/2025 09/22/2025ENF 21-1578 RECHECK SCHEDULED 10/14/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMROBBINS ST

08/18/2025ENF 23-1352 CLOSED 12/12/2023 08/18/2025OBTAINED PERMIT NCHIPMAN ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

12/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/18/2025ENF 24-0140 CLOSED 02/21/2024 08/18/2025RESOLVED YMELINDA AVE

08/18/2025 09/04/2025ENF 25-0173 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/05/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

08/18/2025 09/15/2025ENF 25-0628 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/07/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWRIGHT AVE

08/18/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0666 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMACK ST

08/19/2025 10/13/2025ENF 25-0508 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/29/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NBROADWAY AVE

08/19/2025ENF 25-0642 CLOSED 07/09/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED YRANDOLPH ST

08/20/2025 09/17/2025ENF 24-0495 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/19/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NOLIVER ST

08/20/2025 09/10/2025ENF 24-0907 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/23/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACPINE ST

08/21/2025 09/04/2025ENF 24-1262 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/08/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NLINGLE AVE

08/25/2025 09/15/2025ENF 24-1867 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 11/19/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NLINGLE AVE

08/25/2025ENF 25-0474 CLOSED 05/20/2025 08/25/2025RESOLVED NDIMMICK ST

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0647 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/09/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHOWELL ST

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0662 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWOODLAWN AVE

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0735 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0737 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

STEWART ST

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0764 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/11/2025OBTAINED PERMIT COMMCORUNNA AVE

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0769 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YSHIAWASSEE ST

08/25/2025 09/25/2025ENF 25-0808 EXTENSION GRANTED 08/20/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NCLYDE ST

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0822 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/25/2025LETTER SENT NISHAM ST

08/25/2025 09/08/2025ENF 25-0825 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NHICKORY ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

13/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/26/2025 09/10/2025ENF 23-0156 RECHECK SCHEDULED 02/16/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

08/26/2025 09/29/2025ENF 25-0147 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/03/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NKRUST DR

08/26/2025 09/29/2025ENF 25-0164 RECHECK SCHEDULED 03/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YCORUNNA AVE

08/26/2025 09/16/2025ENF 25-0656 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/10/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

08/26/2025 09/16/2025ENF 25-0697 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 07/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NCENTER ST

08/26/2025ENF 25-0755 CLOSED 08/07/2025 08/26/2025RESOLVED YGRAND AVE

08/26/2025 09/09/2025ENF 25-0778 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/12/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

08/26/2025 09/09/2025ENF 25-0779 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/12/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

08/26/2025 09/09/2025ENF 25-0795 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/18/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NWOODLAWN AVE

08/27/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0531 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANTBEEHLER ST

08/28/2025 09/11/2025ENF 25-0603 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NKING ST

09/02/2025 09/09/2025ENF 25-0738 PENDING 1ST TICKET 08/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0751 CLOSED 08/06/2025 09/02/2025RESOLVED YPINE ST

09/02/2025 09/16/2025ENF 25-0767 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/11/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NOLIVER ST

09/02/2025 09/09/2025ENF 25-0828 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NMOORE ST

Total Entries 45

NO BUILDING PERMIT

08/12/2025ENF 25-0780 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YSHIAWASSEE ST

08/20/2025ENF 25-0789 CLOSED 08/13/2025 09/02/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NOLIVER ST

Total Entries 2

RENTAL REGISTRATION



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

14/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/29/2025 10/03/2025ENF 25-0839 LETTER SENT 08/29/2025COMPLAINT LOGGED YCASS ST

Total Entries 1

ROW VIOLATIONS

08/12/2025ENF 25-0760 CLOSED 08/07/2025 08/12/2025RESOLVED NDEWEY ST

08/19/2025 09/04/2025ENF 25-0698 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/22/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NFIFTH ST

08/19/2025ENF 25-0787 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED NCHIPMAN ST

08/27/2025ENF 25-0773 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/27/2025RESOLVED NEXCHANGE ST

09/02/2025 09/16/2025ENF 25-0763 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/11/2025LETTER SENT NHUNTINGTON DR

09/02/2025 09/16/2025ENF 25-0800 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/19/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YWILLOW ST

Total Entries 6

RV/CAMPER VIOLATIONS

08/21/2025 09/04/2025ENF 25-0817 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/21/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YKING ST

Total Entries 1

SIGN VIOLATION

08/04/2025 09/04/2025ENF 25-0586 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/23/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMWATER

08/06/2025ENF 25-0707 CLOSED 07/23/2025 08/06/2025RESOLVED VACANT
LOT

MAIN ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0793 CLOSED 08/18/2025 09/02/2025RESOLVED COMMWASHINGTON ST

09/02/2025ENF 25-0794 CLOSED 08/18/2025 09/02/2025RESOLVED COMMWASHINGTON

Total Entries 4

TEMPORARY STRUCTURES

08/04/2025ENF 25-0079 CLOSED 02/04/2025 08/04/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY NAPPLEWOOD DR

08/07/2025ENF 24-1761 CLOSED 11/04/2024 08/07/2025RESOLVED YSTEWART ST



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

15/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

08/18/2025 09/30/2025ENF 24-1013 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/17/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY NWASHINGTON ST

08/19/2025 09/22/2025ENF 25-0803 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/19/2025LETTER SENT NSTEWART ST

08/21/2025 09/22/2025ENF 25-0821 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/21/2025LETTER SENT NCOMSTOCK ST

08/26/2025 10/27/2025ENF 25-0820 RECHECK SCHEDULED 08/21/2025CONTACT WITH OWNER NGRAND AVE

Total Entries 6

TREES HANGING OVER ROW

08/18/2025 09/18/2025ENF 25-0665 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/14/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMCHIPMAN ST

08/19/2025ENF 25-0775 CLOSED 08/12/2025 08/19/2025RESOLVED NOLIVER ST

Total Entries 2

VACANT STRUCTURES

08/20/2025 09/17/2025ENF 24-0728 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/01/2024INSPECTED PROPERTY VACADAMS ST

Total Entries 1

VACANT/SQUATTERS

08/06/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0565 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/12/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
HOUSE

GENESEE ST

Total Entries 1

VISIBILITY

08/20/2025 09/03/2025ENF 25-0677 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/16/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY YCASS ST

Total Entries 1

ZONING

08/06/2025ENF 25-0645 CLOSED 07/09/2025 08/06/2025RESOLVED NCLYDE ST

08/25/2025ENF 25-0549 CLOSED 06/09/2025 08/25/2025INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMMAIN ST

Total Entries 2



Last Action
Date RentalDate Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

16/16Code Enforcement Activity09/02/25

AUGUST 2025

Total Records: 247 Total Pages: 16











 
CHARLES, NATHAN BUILDING OFFICIAL

Total Inspections: 59

BOOTH, MARK MECHANICAL & PLUMBING INSPECTOR
Total Inspections: 73

HARRIS, JON ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR
Total Inspections: 33

 
FREEMAN, GREG CODE ENFORCEMENT

Total Inspections: 175

MAYBAUGH, BRAD CODE ENFORCEMENT
Total Inspections: 142

Grand Total Inspections: 482

Monthly Inspection List
AUGUST 2025



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
ADULT USE RECREATIONAL RETAIL 

1 1 2
$5,000 $5,000 $10,000

AMPHITHEATER
2 4 3 9

$50 $50 $150 $250
BENTLEY PARK RENTAL

6 14 10 11 6 1 48
$150 $400 $250 $275 $150 $25 $1,250

GROWER LICENSE (Medical)
0

$0
HARMON PATRIDGE PARK RENTAL

5 13 11 14 6 1 50
$150 $400 $325 $350 $200 $25 $1,450

1 1 1 3
$40 $40 $80

MOBILE FOOD VENDING (Food Truck License)
1 1

$150 $150
PROCESSOR LICENSE

1 1
$5,000 $5,000

PROVISIONING CENTER
0

$0
RECREATIONAL GROW

2 2
$10,000 $10,000

RENTAL (Renewals)
5 3 10 18

$250 $150 $500 $900
RENTAL REGISTRATIONS (New)

3 2 1 3 3 6 2 20
$150 $100 $50 $150 $150 $300 $100 $1,000

RESIDENTIAL PARKING
1 1

$120 $120
TOTALS:

11 2 5 6 25 36 28 28 12 2 0 0 155
$10,520 $100 $200 $10,190 $5,950 $1,300 $765 $775 $350 $50 $0 $0 $30,200

CERTIFICATES & LICENSES ISSUED BY MONTH FOR 2025

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION (C OF A AND NOTICE TO PROCEED)



 
 

OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
202 S. WATER ST.  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0580  FAX (989)725-0528 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

DATE:   11 September 2025 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
FROM:   Eric E. Cherry 
 Police Department Captain 
RE:   August 2025 Police Activity Report 
 
 
Master Plan Goal 3.1, 3.2 
 

The Investigative Services Bureau attended the monthly multidisciplinary meeting for all forensic interviews 
conducted.  This is where investigators, CPS, Voices for Children and Shiawassee County Prosecutors discuss where each 
case is at of the reported sexual assault investigations. 

Our Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant and Substance Use Program (COSSUP) team met on multiple occasions 
and also completed some field work with persons that were effected by overdose.  
 The department administration held a walk through for vendors bidding on access and security upgrades to the 
Public Safety building. 
 The department administration met with Superintendents from the county school districts, local law enforcement 
and members of probate court to discuss security and a new juvenile diversion program through probate court. 
 

August - 5 YEAR AVERAGE 
 

 
2021-

August 
2022-

August 
2023-

August 
2024-

August 
2025-

August 
August 5YR 

AVG 

Part I Crimes 40 33 26 19 23 28.2 

Part II Crimes 92 103 99 75 80 89.8 

Violent Crimes 10 11 7 10 5 8.6 

Total Reports 190 186 178 140 150 168.8 

Felony Arrests 7 9 7 7 7 7.4 

Total Arrests 36 46 31 29 28 34 

Traffic Stops 28 49 100 54 23 50.8 

All Dispatched Events 1004 943 915 874 836 914.4 

 
 
 

 



LAST 12 MONTHS 
 

 
2024-
Sep 

2024-
Oct 

2024-
Nov 

2024-
Dec 

2025-
Jan 

2025-
Feb 

2025-
Mar 

2025-
Apr 

2025-
May 

2025-
Jun 

2025-
Jul 

2025-
Aug 

Last 12 
Months Average 

Part I Crimes 25 29 19 17 23 18 30 18 25 13 26 23 266 22.17 

Part II Crimes 80 95 81 70 65 59 84 87 87 82 79 80 949 79.08 

Violent Crimes 3 9 7 4 7 2 10 4 8 4 7 5 70 5.83 

Total Reports 176 161 153 139 160 114 157 166 168 157 149 150 1850 154.17 

Felony Arrests 4 14 8 6 5 5 6 8 8 15 12 7 98 8.17 

Total Arrests 34 39 40 23 22 20 27 33 35 42 37 28 380 31.67 

Traffic Stops 80 27 34 48 105 109 43 87 84 35 118 23 793 66.08 

All Dispatched 
Events 1003 692 607 606 835 657 730 820 798 787 907 836 9278 773.17 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 301  W.  M AI N   O WO SSO , MI CHI G AN 48867- 2958   ( 989)  725- 0580 

  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:   September 10, 2025 
 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart   
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   August 2025 Fire & Ambulance Report 
 
  
 
Attached are the statistics for the Owosso Fire Department (OFD) for August 2025. The 
Owosso Fire Department responded to 263 incidents in the month of August. 
  
OFD responded to 10 fire or rescue calls and EMS responded to 253 EMS calls.   
 
 
 

Fire Calls   EMS Calls   
Illegal Burning 1 City of Owosso 155 
Wires Down 0 Corunna EMS 0 
Rescue 2 Fairfield Twp.  5 
Car Fire 0 Laingsburg 0 
False Alarm 2 Middlebury 

Twp.  
21 

Building Fire-Owosso 2 Owosso Twp.  66 
Building Fire-Mutual Aid 0 Perry Area EMS 0 

Gas Leak 2 Rush Twp.  6 
Smoke Investigation 1 Out of County 0 
Total 10 Total 253 

 

 
 
 



Monthly Responses by Zone Owosso Fire Dpt Sep 4, 2025 8:25:40 AM EMS

Filter statement

Filters 1 more...

1/1

Days in Dispatched 8/1/25 to 8/31/25 Is Locked true Is Active true

Responses by Scene Zone

Total Records

Responses by Zone

City of OwossoCity of Owosso
155155
City of Owosso
155

Fairfield TownshipFairfield Township
55
Fairfield Township
5

Middlebury TownshipMiddlebury Township
2121
Middlebury Township
21

Owosso TownshipOwosso Township
6666
Owosso Township
66

Rush TownshipRush Township
66
Rush Township
6

City of Owosso Fairfield Township Middlebury Township Owosso Township
Rush Township

61%
8%

26%



PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

Draft Minutes of Wednesday, August 27, 2025 

7:00 p.m. at Bentley Park Pavilion 

 

CALL TO ORDER:   Chairman Mahoney called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL: 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Dennis Mahoney, Vice-Chair Jeff Selbig, Commissioners 
Ellen Rodman, Kollin Lienau, Emily Olson, and Carol Anne Smith 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  Commissioner Kevin Maginity 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Commissioner Smith made a motion to approve the agenda for 
August 27, 2025.  The motion was supported by Commissioner 
Olson.  Ayes all, motion carried.  ` 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Commissioner Rodman made a motion to approve the minutes for 
June 25, 2025.  The motion was supported by Commissioner 
Smith.  Ayes all, motion carried.   

PUBLIC COMMENTS:   Steven McMurry talked to the Commission about his concerns with 
Curwood Castle Park.  Mr. McMurry suggested a guardrail along the wall in the park and suggested 
eliminating the stairs near Curwood Castle.  He said he had talked to local businesses that were 
willing to help.   

Chairman Mahoney stated that the commission strives for safety and asked Amy Fuller to look into 
Mr. McMurry’s proposal. 

OLD BUSINESS REPORT: Amy Fuller shared that new scoreboards will arrive for the softball fields 
in September or October.  She said the new signs for Grove Holman and Grand Ave Park have been 
installed and that the new mural at the skatepark was progressing nicely.  Commissioner Rodman 
offered a power source to help the Harringtons with the mural, and Commissioner Smith offered to 
spend time planning the fitness course. 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS: 

Splash Pad: Amy Fuller shared that the First Church of the Nazarene had made a donation to the 
splash pad project in the amount of $886.17.   There was discussion on forming a committee to work 
on planning the splash pad improvements. 

Pickleball Tournament: No report. 

Eagle Scout Project:  Amy Fuller shared that a Boy Scout was planning on building two new garden 
beds at Hopkins Lake as part of an Eagle Scout Project.  There was a discussion on additional 
locations to put garden beds.  Amy Fuller was asked to get pricing for adding water at Adams Park 
and Fayette Square. 

Student Position on Board: Chairman Mahoney requested that Vice Chair Selbig run the meeting 
since he had a conflict of interest.  There was discussion on the appointment process.  Amy Fuller 
was asked to add creating a more detailed process to the next meeting agenda.  Commissioner 
Olson made a motion to recommend that the Mayor appoint Adeline Mahoney to the Commission.  
Motion supported by Commissioner Rodman.  Motion passed. 



 

  

PUBLIC/COMMISSIONER COMMENTS:  

NEXT MEETING: September 24, 2025 

ADJOURNMENT: Commissioner Smith made a motion to adjourn at 7:58 p.m. The motion was 
supported by Commissioner Olson.  Ayes all, motion carried.   

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

Amy Fuller, Assistant City Manager 



 

 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF THE  
OWOSSO MAIN STREET & DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
  

September 3, 2025, AT 7:30 A.M. 

CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Chair Daylen Howard at 7:32 A.M. 

ROLL CALL:  Taken by Lizzie Fredrick 

PRESENT:  Chair Daylen Howard, Vice-Chair Lance Omer, Mayor Robert J. Teich, Jr. and 
Commissioners Jill Davis, Bill Gilbert, Karen Parzych, and Jon Moore. Commissioner Josh Ardelean 
arrived at 7:34 a.m. 

ABSENT:  None 

STAFF PRESENT:  Lizzie Fredrick, OMS & DDA Director 

AGENDA:  

MOVED BY MOORE SUPPORTED BY OMER TO APPROVE THE SEPTEMBER 3, 2025, OWOSSO 
MAIN STREET AND DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AGENDA AS PRESENTED. 
AYES:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

MINUTES:   
 
MOVED BY PARZYCH, SUPPORTED BY DAVIS TO APPROVE THE AUGUST 6, 2025, OWOSSO 
MAIN STREET AND DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES. 
AYE:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

REPORTS:  Fredrick reviewed the August Check Disbursement Report and Revenue & Expenditure 
Report. 
 
Fredrick presented August 2025 reports for Electric Vehicle Charging Station Revenue, Unique Drivers, 
and Session Quantity. 
 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS: 

 
1. Electric Vehicle Charging Station Services: Howard reviewed the Memorandum 

Background noting June 2025 Electric Vehicle charging revenue and expenditures, fiscal yar 
2024-2025 Electric Vehicle charging revenue and energy bills, cost estimates for the Electric 
Vehicle Charging Station Services, current Electric Vehicle charging rates, and October 23, 
2025, expiration of the three-year ChargePoint cloud plan and three-year warranty. 
 
Howard reminded the Board that the cloud plan is required for revenue collection, software 
updates, and listings on charger location apps. 
 
Fredrick introduced Levi Perry, an Owosso resident and Owosso Main Street volunteer, who 
owns an electric vehicle and uses the two charging stations in Main Street Plaza. 
 
Fredrick noted that Perry is available to answer the Board’s questions regarding Electric 
Vehicles and provide a user perspective and feedback. 



 

 

Fredrick notified the Board that a decision is not required at this time and can be made during 
the October 1st meeting regarding the Electric Vehicle Charging Station Services. 
 
Board questioned Perry about the different types of charging ports and electric vehicle usage. 
 
Perry said the NACS port that charges Tesla vehicles will be the new standard, and that the 
two Main Street Plaza charging stations have CCS1 and CHAdeMO ports. 
 
Fredrick confirmed that five out of 288 charging sessions within the last 90 days had utilized 
the CHAdeMo port, generating $32.68 in revenue out of $3,259.20. 
 
Omer noted past repairs to the charging stations. 
 
Board asked Fredrick about warranty utilization, warranty coverage, and repair costs. 
 
Fredrick shared that the warranty covered past repairs besides a broken clip, which was due 
to user error, but had not received the data from ChargePoint upon request. 
 
Howard and Ardelean asked if the warranty can be purchased after the current warranty 
expires. 
 
Fredrick confirmed she will follow up with ChargePoint to clarify the warranty coverage and 
past usage, repair costs, and whether there is a renewal deadline for the Board’s 
consideration of the warranty renewal at the October 1st meeting. 
 
Moore asked Perry about his experience and perspective on different pricing for charging. 
 
Perry shared that a $.05 to $.10 increase or $.50 one-time session fee would not be a drastic 
change deterring usage of the two charging stations. 
 
Board discussed whether the 30-minute grace period should be adjusted for completely 
charged vehicles and the intention behind time length. 

 
Perry said higher traffic areas typically have a shorter grace period to accommodate more 
users and supported the longer grace period to allow for more downtown commerce. 
 
Gilbert noted that 103 sessions in August doesn’t make the Main Street Plaza chargers a 
high usage location and suggested creating a budget plan for future maintenance and 
repairs.  
 
MOVED BY MOORE, SUPPORTED BY HOWARD TO UPGRADE THE ELECTRIC 
VEHICLE CHARGING STATION CHADEMO PORTS TO NACS PORTS.  
AYE:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

MOVED BY ARDELEAN, SUPPORTED BY HOWARD TO INCREASE THE ELECTRIC 
VEHICLE CHARGING RATE TO $.45 PER KWH, MAINTAIN THE 30 MINUTE GRACE 
PERIOD, AND ADD A ONE-TIME $.50 SESSION FEE. 
AYE:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

MOVED BY HOWARD, SUPPORTED BY MOORE TO APPROVE A THREE-YEAR CLOUD 
PLAN RENEWAL WITH CHARGEPOINT FOR THE ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING 
STATIONS. 
AYE:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 



 

 

COMMITTEE UPDATES: 
 

1. Organization:  Moore shared that he and Fredrick subscribed emails, collected during National 
Night Out, to the monthly Community Newsletter during the meeting. 

 
Moore reminded the Board that the fall volunteer recruitment event will be on September 6th from 
9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. at Foster Coffee Company. 
 

2. Promotion:  Davis provided updates on the Downtown Owosso Tick or Treat activity that was 
created during the August Main Street Meetup with downtown business owners. 
 

3. Economic Vitality:  Omer noted that the Committee worked on the Business of the Month 
Program, Main Street Meetups, and Building & Business Inventory during the meeting. 
 
Fredrick announced the Block Captain Program, which will be finalized over the winter for a 
spring or summer launch. 
 
Fredrick reminded the Board that the Main Street Meetup for the Revolving Loan & Grant 
Program is for current and prospective Owosso business and commercial property owners on 
October 7th at 6:00 p.m. in City Hall. 

 
4. Design:  Parzych said the Committee primarily worked on the transition from summer to fall 

beautification projects. 
 

Fredrick provided updates on the Design Committee’s selection of a public art piece, a historical 
marker in front of the Steam Railroading Institute, and additional downtown seating as three 
options for community members to vote on and select as the project for the 2025 Chocolate Walk 
proceeds. 

 
DIRECTOR UPDATES:  Fredrick shared that Parzych and Howard will be joining her at the September 
30th Michigan Main Street Workshop for Board Engagement and Management. 

BOARD COMMENTS:  More announced that it’s time to start working on the fiscal year 2024-2025 
Impact Report. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

MOVED BY GILBERT, SUPPORTED BY OMER TO ADJOURN AT 8:30 A.M. 
AYES:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

NEXT MEETING OCTOBER 1, 2025. 


	AGENDA
	ZoomNotice-250915

	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	250902CouncilMinutes

	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Adeline Mahoney Application_Redacted
	2. TrafficControlOrderNo1546
	3. TrafficControlOrderRequest-WalkToEndAlzheimer's_Redacted
	4. TrafficControlOrderRequest-HomecomingParade_Redacted
	5. TrafficControlOrderRequest-MarchingBandFestival_Redacted
	6. EmergencyRepairAuthorization-PublicSafetyVehicle
	7. ChangeOrder-2025WellImprovementsProject
	8. WarrantNo659

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1. 5th Monday Meeting
	2. SATACommitment
	3. WaterPortalProposal

	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	COMMUNICATIONS
	1. BuildingDepartmentReport-August2025
	2. CodeEnforcementReport-August2025
	3. InspectionsReport-August2025
	4. CertificatesIssuedReport-August2025
	5. PoliceReport-August2025
	6. FireDepartmentReport-August2025
	7. Parks&RecreationCommissionMinutes-250827
	8. DDAMainStreetBoardMinutes-250903

	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



